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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and Auditors’ Report of the
Charitable Company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a Trustees' Report and a Directors' Report under company law,

The Charitable Company was incorporated on 8 July 2011 and commenced trade as a single academy trust and
academy sponsor, Queen Elizabeth’s Grammar School Ashbourne Academy (known as Queen Elizabeth's
Grammar Schoel), on 1 August 2011. On 1 April 2017 Queen Elizabeih's Grammar School converted from a
single academy trust to a multi academy trust, QEGSMAT (the Academy Trust) together with Waterhouses CE
Primary Academy. Since then, the Academy Trust has grown steadily with the following schools joining:

S hool Date joined
Springfield Junior School 1stJune 2017
City of Derby Academy 151 September 2017

Castle View Primary 8chool |1stFebruary 2018
St John's CE Primary School |1stJsenuary2021
Chellaston Academy 1st June 2021

There were over 4,700 pupils on roll across the Academy Trust during the year.
Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

The Academy Trust is a Charitable Company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitabte
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation are the primary governing documents of the Academy
Trust. The Trustees of QEGSMAT are also the Directors of the Charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The Charitable company operates as QEGSMAT.

Detalls of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details an page 1.

b. Members’ liability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debis and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a Member,

¢. Trustees’ indemnities

Subject to the provisions of the Companles Act 2006 and the Academy Trust's articles of association, every
Trustee shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Academy Trust against any liability incurred by them in that
capacity in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour or in which
they are acquitied or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to them by the court from liability
for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the Academy Trust.

The Academy Trust's schools are members of the Government's Risk Prolection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to commercial Insurance.
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management {continued)

d, Methods of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Academy Trust recruits and appoints Trustees in accordance with its Articles of Association which state:

a} Up to 7 shall be appointed by the Members;

b} Ne less than 1 shall be appointed by the Derby Diocesan Board of Education;

c) No less than 1 shall be appointed by the Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education; and
d} Up to 2 shall be appointed by the Old Trust.

The total number of Trustees appointed by the Derby and Lichfield Diocesan Boards of Education shali not
axceed 25% of the total number of Trustees, and the CEO shall be a Trustee, being the only employee of the
Academy Trust who may be a Trustee.

The term of office for any Trusiee shall be 4 years, save this time limit shall not apply to the CEO who shall serve
for as long as they hold office.

Trustees are recruited following a rigorous process, which includes an initial introductory discussion, an informal
CV review and an interview with Trustees, including the Chair of the Board. Appointments are made basad on
skills and experiance, and for the Trust Board to operate effactively, the following blend of skills has been
identified: education, safeguarding, health and safety, finance, commercial, human rescurces, information
technology, estate and facilities management, marketing and public relations. In line with safer recruitment
practices, the Trust carries out Enhanced DBS checks and right to work in the UK checks prior to appointing
Trustees.

The Trust Board cafrias out an annual skills audit to identify strengths and skills gaps. The skills audit helps

inform the recruitment of Trustees and the appointment of Trustees to the Board's sub-committees. Training
and development programmes are geared towards plugging any identified skills gaps.
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management {continuad)

2. Policles and procedures adopted for the induction and trafning of Trustees

The induction and training provided to Trustees is tailored to their needs and is dependent on their skills and
experience.

New Trustees attend an infarmal induction meeting as soon as practicable after their appointment where they
learn about the Academy Trust's vision, values and goals. They are also provided with:

+ The Academy Trust's strategic and operational plans;

« |is organisational structure and information about the other Trustees;

» The Board's Terms of Reference and the Terms of Reference of its sub-committees;
= The Academy Trust's Scheme of Delegation;

+ The Articles of Association;

- The Academy Trust Handbook and any recent correspondence from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA);

» The calendar of Trustee meetings,

* Minutes of the two most recent Trust Board meetings;

» The most recent performance reports;

* The Academy Trust's Code of Conduct; and

» A list of policies and where to find them.

Trustees are inviled to attend a range training courses, developed in-house by the Executive Leadership Team.
These courses cover a wide range of topics inciuding Welcome to Govemance, Safeguarding, Pupil Premium,
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND), Budget and Financial Management and Understanding
Data. Trustees are also required to complete Keeping Children Safe in Education (KCSIE), Child Protection,
Cyber Security and GDPR training and are encouraged to visit as many of the Academy Trust's schools as is
practicable, to meet pupils, students, staff and Local Governors. The same training courses are also offered to
Lacal Governors.

Reviews are undertaken regularly to ensure effective governance and there is an on-going commitment to
training and development. An extenal review of governance was undertaken during the period under review.
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Academy Trust operates seven schools for pupils aged 2 to 18 in three local authority areas, Derbyshire,
Derby City and Staffordshire. This does not come without complexities, and the organisational structure (shown
below) is designed to ensure Trustees and Executive Leaders maintain a sharp focus on the strategic needs of
the organisation as a whole, and on the needs of each school, 1o support the delivery of rapid and sustained
school improvement.

Members
| SV,
Teust Board B .l CEQ
b £
! | i [ &l t| LY
=2 —— -
P - finance, Audit & Direttors of l Chlef Oper ating
gl [chszation/Central Officer /Oeputy
Committee { ites -
m e ! Risk Committe2 | Tearn o CEO
| ' | F
l Loty Gavbendrs 1eca! Gevernas Loed’ Geverran 1a¢0' Governcrs 'l Academy Heads
| Local Gonetnor Sub Cormaiees (nane ar a3 fecuired) E Academy
Leadarship Teams

The Board of Trustees has appointed two sub-committees to ensure robust oversight of the Academy Trust is
maintained:

» The Performance Committee, which is responsible for overseeing the quality of education provided by the
Academy Trust and its schools.

» The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, which Is responsible for overseeing the Academy Trust's financial
performance, and for ensuring resources are used efficiently and effectively to maximise outcomes for pupils
and students. The committee also provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy of the intarnal financial
control framework including financial and non-financial controls and risk management, along with responsibility
for overseeing data protection within the Trust.

The scope of each committee’s work is set out in clear, written terms of refereﬁce which are reviewed at least
annually. The sub-committees provide rigorous scrutiny of the educational and financial perfarmance of the
Trust and its schools.

Additionally, each schoal has its own Local Governing Body, responsible for the quality of teaching and learning
and the achlevement and standards in their school. They ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction,
providing support and challenge on educational performance.

The CEQ is responsible for leading the Academy Trust's Executive Team, which works to ensure the Academy
Trust and its schools are sustainably successful over time. As a system leader, the CEQ represents the
Academy Trust with a wide range of stakeholders and partners. They are also the Accounting Officer for the
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Academy Trust, responsible for snsuring it meets its statutory and legal requirements.

Executive Leaders provide high level strategic leadership and management across all aspects of the Academy
Trust, and ensure resources and people are used efficiently and effectively to provide high quality education to all

puplis and students and keep the Academy Trust's cash and other assets safe and secure.

A governance and leadership framework is in place, with clear lines of accountability and communication at all
levels, and a written Scheme of Delegation sets out the decision making responsibilities.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Academy Trust's key management personnel are its Members, Trustees, Execulive Leaders and
Headteachers.

The Members and Trustees receive no pay or remuneration for their work and discharge their responsibilities
wholly voluntarily.

Whilst the CEO is remunerated, this is for their work as an employee of the Academy Trust and in accordance
with their contract of employment. It is not for their role as a Trusiee.

The Trust Board reviews the pay and remuneration of &all employees, including the Executive Leaders and

Headteachers annually. it does so in accordance with the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions document, the
Academy Trust's Pay Policy, and the employment contracts of employees.
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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 came Into force on 1 April 2017.
Under the provisions of those regulations the Academy Trust provides the following infermation for the period
under review:

Relevant Union Officials

Number of employees who were relevant trade

; s ; . Full time equivalent number of employees
union officials during the period 1 e

10.0 9.60

Percentage of time spent on facility time

0% 3.00
1-50% 700

51-99% 0.00

100% 0.00

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time £6,722.36
Total pay bill £24,758,557.00
P-ercentage of total pay bill spent on facilities 0.03%
time

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 0.00%

percentage of total paid facility time hours
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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

l. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

In the period under review, there was only one related party transaction. The Academy Trust paid £1,637 to the
Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education (LDBE) for the provision of Christian distinctivenass support at both
Waterhouses and St John's. However, it is worth noting that, whitst the LDBE has the right to appoint a Trustee
to the Board, the position was vacant for the entire period under review.

The Academy Trust continues to benefit from strong partnerships with other organisations for the benefit of its
puplls and students.

The CEO, a Fellow of the Chartered College of Teaching, continued to work as a National Leader of Education
{NLE) and Link Advisor for Derbyshire Local Authority, providing system leadership and school to school suppart
to a number of schools outside the Academy Trust. They also continued to be part of the network of National
Coaches for Women Leading in Education. Cther Executive Leaders continued to network with other Trusts.

The Academy Trust continued to have flourishing relationships with a wide range of pariners including the
Department for Education (DfE), the ESFA, the University of Derby, the Spencer Teaching Schools Hub,
Ambitlon Leadership, Djanogly Leaming Trust and the Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education, to support the
delivary of its education priorities and improve outcomas for children and young pecple. Similarly, the Trust's
schools maintained their involvement with a wide range of partners including the Derbyshire Headteachars
Group, the Derby City Collaboration of Schools, the Leek Education Partnership, the Swadlincote School
Improvement Partnership, the Highfields Cluster of Schools and St Wilfrid's English Hub. The Academy Trust
also worked alongside Delta Academles Trust to drive further fast-paced school improvement at Castle View.

During the period under review, the Academy Trust worked hard to provide its children and young people with a
wide range of enrichment opportunities and maintained its excellent relationships with lts Friends, Parent and
Teacher Associations, the Old Trust (The Trustees and Assistants of Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School), the
Woodroffe Benton Foundation and the Old Ashbumian Society.

|- Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Academy Trust actively engages with its employees. Employees are encouraged to have a voice
concemning the Academy Trust, its performance and management, via a varety of methods including staff voice
surveys and consultations. Trustees and Executive Leaders listen to the opinions of employses and take
appropriate action o ensure the Academy Trust is a rewarding and stimulating place to work and a place where
staff, children and young people thrive.

The Academy Trust continues to offer vacancies to all, making sure that if an individual has a disability, they are
appropriately supported and reasonable adjustments are made, to ensure they can fulfil their role and
responsibilities safely and effectively.

In accordance with the Equality and Equal Opportunities in Employment Palicies, the Academy Trust has

established fair employment practices in the recruitment, selection, training, suppost and retention of disabled
staff.

k. Engagement with suppllers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust

The Academy Trust works hard to foster effective business relationshlps with others. Positive, polite and
professional communication is critical to this, alongside timely payment of supplier invoices.

The Academy Trust selects its suppliers with care, having regard to their ability to provide the highest value for
moeney and uphold the Academy Trust's ethos and reputation.
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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management {continued)

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The Academy Trust aims to provide high quality education and care to every young person so they can reach
their potential. It recognises the importance of high-quality teaching and learning and operates a robust school
improvement system with the aim of doing something exceptional for the young people in its schools. lis purpose
is fo ensure the best possible educational cutcomes for all pupils and students in a safe, vibrant

environment in which they can thrive and develop.

The actions to Question, Explore, Give and Succeed drive the provision of consistent world-class education
and care. The Academy Trust's vision is to enable every young person to enjoy leaming and reach their full
potential.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

To achieve its purpose and vislon, the Academy Trust's goals are to:

= Offer a broad, balanced, ambiticus and creative curriculum, which enables all cur young people to achieve tha
very best outcomes and leave education well prepared for the next steps in their lives;

» Deliver high quality teaching, learning and assessment and effective leadership at all levels;

* Develop the culture and individuality of our schools and Trust, building a strong community in and around us;

« Offer a rewarding and stimulating workplace for staff; and

* Provide a strong, safe and financlally sustainable environment.

in developing the Academy Trust's purpose, vision and goals, the Board of Trustees carefully considered the
Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit,

The Academy Trust's schools share these goals and strive to achieve them in a way relevant to their own
context and as set out in their individual Academy Improvement Plans.

¢. Public benefit

The Academy Trust's schools are non-selective and non-fee paying, and as such operate entirely for the public
benefit. In addition to striving for and achieving the highest educational standards and attainment for all pupils
and students, the Academy Trust engages in partnership working with others, particularly in Derbyshire, Derby
City and Staffordshire.

The Academy Trust also has Jinks with many local and national businesses that provide support for a wide range
of enrichment and careers activities and opportunities for the benefit of its pupils and students. There are also
links with the local churches in Ashbourne, and with the Derby and Lichfield Diocesan Boards of Education.

The Academy Trust works for the benefit of the communities it serves and hires out its facilities, including halls,
sports halls, sports pitches and swimming pool to local community groups.
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QEGSMAT

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strateglc report

Achievements and performance

No new schools joined the Academy Trust in the period under review. As at 31 August 2024, 642 people (746
posts) were employed in both teaching and non-teaching roles, including 134 relief staff. There were
approximately 4,800 pupils and students on roll aged between 2 and 18.

The Academy Trust implemented a curriculum led approach to financial planning to ensure each school
continued to provide a broad, balanced, ambitious and creative cumiculum, designed to promote academic
excellence and develop individual talents and interests through enrichment and extra-curricular activities and
opportunities, and reflect national and local priorities.

During this period, Ofsted carried out graded inspections under Section 5 of the Education Act in four of the

Academy Trust's schools and recognised improvements, as set out below:

3 - bringfield of Derb
Date of inspection Sep-23 Nov-23 Mar-24 ar-24
Overall effectlveness Good Good Good Requires

improvement

Quality of education Good Good Good Good
Behaviour and attitudes Good Good Good Good
Personal development Good Good Good Good
Leadership and Good Good Good Good
management
Sixth form provision Good - ol
Early years provision Outstanding
Previous Inspection Inadequate Good Requires Requires

| grade improvement | improvement
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Strategic report (continuad)

Achilevements and performance (continued)

a. Key performance indicators

The performance of the Academy Trust will always be determined by the achievements of its pupils.

Key Stage 5

Pupils in year 13 at both Queen Elizabeth’s and Chetlaston Academy achieved very well in their Summer 2024
exams, and consequently were able to access their chosen pathway. This has indeed been the case for many
years now. In terms of attainment and the average point score (APS) per A Level, both schools improved on
their strong 2023 results and performed better than 2024 national averages, though at the time of writing these
remain unvalidated. As a comparative in the tables that follow, 2023's national averages have been used since
these are validated.

A summary of the results is set out below:

Queen Elizabeth’s 136 37.3 B- 28.6 80.5 99.3
Chellaston Academy 142 36.8 B- 28.6 81.3 99.0
QEGSMAT 178 37.0 B- 28.6 80.9 99.1
National 34.1 C+ 27.6 76.0 97.1

In terms of Applied General qualifications, both schools were significantly above the national average for points
per qualification, with the Trust average grade being 1 grade higher per entry than the national average (see
below):

Queen Elizabeth’s 38.2 Distinction+
Chellaston Academy 36.8 Distinction+
QEGSMAT 37.8 Distinction+
National 29.5 Merit+
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Strateglc report (continued)

Achievements and performance {continuad)

Key Stage 4
The table below shows the headiines from the Summer 2024 results:

Student English and English and X e
entries Maths 9-4 Maths 9-5
Chellaston 298 73.7% 53.2% 48.2
City of Derby Academy 167 43.0% 21.0% 32.3
Queen Elizabeth’s 250 63.2% 43.6% 46.2
QEGSMAT 714 61.8% 41.9% 43.8
Early National* 225,430 67.1% 47.5% 47.2
Early East Midlands* NA 65.9% 45.6% 46.1

*awaiting validated national statistics from the DfE
In summary:

» Chellaston’s results were above natlonal averages and Queen Elizabeth's were in line with national averages.

* Whilst City of Derby Academy's results were below national averages, all attainment measures improved on
2023; a significant achievement when considering the context of the school, It serves one of the most deprived
wards in the country, has a large proportion of mobile students, a larger than average population of students with
special educational needs and a high proportion of disadvantaged students.
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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Stage 2

Results showed a significant improvement from 2023, with trust wide improvements being made in all published
measures, namely Reading, Maths, Writing and Grammar, Punciuation and Speliing (GPS}, both in terms of
scaled scores and the proportion of pupiis meeting the expected standards in each area.

Reading

The graphs below show the average scaled score in Reading for each primary school, 75% of which saw an
improvement on last year. The trust wide average scaled score has increased and is moving closer to the
national average.

Reading - Average Scaled Score Wisheslld @

Tewat by, 1326 Mazld, 105
Trust 23,1819

,

75% of the schools also saw an increase in the proportion of pupils achieving the expected standard, and 100%
saw an increase in the proportion of pupils achieving greater depth standard for Reading, as shown below:
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Strateglc report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)
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Maths

The three graphs below show that all of the Academy Trust’s primary schools saw an increase in their average
scaled score for Maths, moving the trust wide average score closer to the national figure. All schools had an
increase in the proportion of pupils achieving the expected standard in Maths, half of which saw more than a
20% increase. The trust wide average for the proportion of pupils achleving the greater depth standard for
Maths doubled from 11% to 22%.
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report {(continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)
Maths - % Achieving Expected Standard by School
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QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance {continued)

Writing

The graph below shows that 75% of the Academy Trust's primary schools saw an increase in the proportion of
pupils meeting the expected standard in the teacher assessed Writing element, increasing the frust wide
proportion,
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Reading, Writing and Maths Combined

All schools have improved In achieving the expectad standard across Reading, Writing and Maths, and while the
cahorls’ profiles mean that it will always be difficult to achieve national averages, it is fantastic to note this
achievement, particularly this year, at Castle View.
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Stratagic report {continued)
Achlevements and performance (continued)

Koy Stage 2 Year 4 Multiplicatlon Check

Results from the year 4 multiplication check showed a positive shift in performance, from 2023 being below the
national average to 2024 being broadly in line. 75% of the Academy Trust's primary schools have increased
their average score, clear evidence to suggest that the schools are now tailoring their curriculum implementation
to reflect the importance of children leamning their times tables (see below).

Year 4 MTC Overview

Average Score by School WIzhacl 1022 Senest 2023

A 323,202
Trust Av, 19.7
Trust 23, 16.8
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Key Stage 1 Year 1 Phonics Check

The tables below show that all schools increased the proportion of children meeting the expected standard of

phonics at the end of year 1. Trust averages for both the proportion of pupils and the average score achieved
are now above national averages.

ear 1 Phonics Overview

% Achieving Standand by School mSnool 252 School 2023
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QEGSMAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Strategic report (continued)

Achlevements and performance (continued)

Average Score by School @ ienoet 2025 o Schonk 2027
N2t 23,33
TrustAv, 34 7
Trust 23, 23,1
B
334
51 Jokn's - .
11
I |
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b. Going concern

An application has been made to the Department for Education for QEGSMAT and Djanogly Learning Trust
{DLT) to merge. This will be considered by the East Midlands Advisory Committee in due course, and subject to
their approval, the two Trusts will aim to merge on 1 September 2025. At the date of signing, there has been no
decision regarding which Trust will transfer to the other, therefore it is possible that the assets and liabilities of
QEGSMAT may transfer to DLT. In this event, QEGSMAT would cease to continue in operational existence and
as such Trustees have determined there is a material uncertainty with regards to going concemn.
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Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

c. Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees promote the success of the Academy Trust and have regard to the:

» Likely long-term consequences of their decisions;

» Interests of the Academy Trust's employees;

» Need to foster the Academy Trust's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
» Impact of the Academy Trust's operatlons on the community and the environment;

» The Academy Trust's reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

*» Need to act fairly.

Trustees are diligent in their scrutiny of information and the performance of the Academy Trust. They undertake
school visits as often as possible, and meet with leaders, other siaff, pupils, students and Local Governors to
gain a wider comprehensicn of each school's culture and ethos, and the needs of the communities they serve.
This equips them to understand the impact of their decisions.

Trustees appreciate the importance of recruiting and retaining the very best employsees, and work hard to
provide a safe, stimulating and rewarding work environment. Periodic staff surveys ara undertaken, and
consultations with employees and their professional associations take place. Trustees act upon the feedback
they receive.

The Trustees and employees of the Academy Trust sirive to maintain the highest standards of conduct at all
times to safeguard the reputation of the Academy Trust.
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Strategic report {continued)

Achlevements and performance (continued)

Financial review
a. Current year review

Incoming resources totalled £37,793,000, made up:

OfE / ESFA grants 31,713
Capntal granty 3,761
Local Authonty income 1,213
Income from aducational operations 670
Donations 28
Other trading actinties 297
Investment income 111

The Academy Trust receives maost of its funding from the ESFA. its main source of income is the General
Annual Grant (GAG) of which £28,073,000 was received in the period. This revenue grant is determined largely
by the number of pupils on roll in each school. Other significant revenue grants received from the ESFA in the
period were the:

+ Pupil Premium of £1,641,000 to improve educational outcomes for disadvantaged pupils (defined as those who
have been eligible for free school meals at any point in the last six years).

» Mainstream Schools Additional Grant (MSAG) of £883,000,

» Teachers’ pay and pensions grants of £837,000, provided to help schools offset higher than expected pay
increases and rising pension costs.

Capital grants received during the year were made up of:

*» 5106 agreement monies - £2,399,000 was received from Derby City Council to enable the completion of major
construction works at Chellaston Academy,

» The School Condition Allocation {SCA) - £1,134,000 was received to maintain and improve the condition of
school buildings to ensure children can learn in a safe and effective environment.

» Connect the Classroom Funding - £121,000 was received from the Government to enable works to improve
internet speeds and upgrade wifi points and network switches in four of the Academy Trusts schools,
Chellaston, City of Derby Academy, Castle View and Springfield.

+ Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) — a total of £107,000 was received and spent mostly on delivering the
Academy Trust's IT Stralegy.

Derbyshire County Council, Staffordshire County Council and Derby City Council provided funding of £1,213,000
to support those children with special educational needs and disabilities and for the children in the Academy
Trust's three nurseries. Income from general sales and the hiring out of the Academy Trust's facilities totalled
£297,000.

No new schools joined the Academy Trust in the period under review, so there wera no transfers from Local
Authaorities or other Trusts.
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Resources expended in the period totalled £36,446,000 as follows:

In addition to the Academy Trust's usual running costs, capital expenditure was incurred on:

= Completing major construction warks at Chellaston Academy;

* Maintaining and improving the condition of school buildings and grounds;

= Replacing aged ICT equipment; and

* Improving the ICT infrastructure and on improving intemet speeds and wi-fi upgrades.

{ash balances rose by £696,000 to £7,914,000 during the period, inclusive of £1,970,000 restricted funds (funds
given to the Academy Trust for a specific purpose such as the capital grants). The cash balance as at 31 August
2024 also Included August 2024's payroll blll of £1,200,000 since, due to a processing error by the Academy
Trust's payroll provider, this was paid from their bank account and recharged to the Trust in September 2024,

Net current assets totalled £5,296,000; a decrease of £791,000.
b. Reserves policy

The reserve levels of the Academy Trust are kept under review by the Board of Trustees and its Finance, Audit
and Risk Committee. It Is the Academy Trust's policy to carry forward a prudent level of funding {a minimum of
5% and a maximum of 10% of the GAG) to ensure long term cyclical needs can be met, assets can be renewed
and unforeseen circumstances such as emergengy building repairs can be managed efficiently and effectively,

Unrestricted fund reserves as at 31 August 2024 were £602,000, made up largely of letlings income generated
since August 2011, when the Academy Trust first began operating, and income for the before and after school
clubs. This figure is not ‘profit’ since not all the associated costs were attributed to the unrestricted fund. These
reserves will be used solely for the purpose of the Academy Trust's charitable objects and to efficiently improve
educational outcomes for all pupils and students.

Restricted income funds as at 31 Augusi 2024 were £2,956,000, derived mostly from grants from the DfE.

The pension reserva deficlt as at 31 August 2024 reflects the present value of the defined benefit liability
determined onh an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The liabllity therefore only becomas due over
the lifetime of the pension scheme. Parliament has agreed to a guarantee to maet these outstanding liabilities in
the event of the Academy Trust closure. Many of the assumplions on which the valuation is based relate to
factors oulside of the Academy Trust's control, and these factors have contributed to a decrease in the deficlt of
£1,356,000 in the year under review to £657,000.

c. Investment pollcy

In accordance with the Academy Trust's Investment Policy, investments can only be made when approved by
the Board of Trustees and only low risk investments will be approved. In the year under review £2,500,000 was
held in fixed rate deposit accounts with Lioyds Bank, the Academy Trust's bankers, for an improved return on
cash balances.
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d. Principal risks and uncertaintles

The Academy Trust maintains a register of the risks to which it is exposed and has established internal control
systems and procedures to mitigate these. The risk register and contfrol arrangements are reviewed by the
Board of Trustees at least annually,

The Academy Trust's principal financlal risks and uncertainties are:

« Levels of funding — the Academy Trust is reliant on grants from the DfE, and these can be affected by changes
in Government and Government policy. Levels of funding can therefore be uncertain making financial planning
with any confidence difficult. This risk is mitigated in the following ways:

o The Academy Trust maintains cash in reserve.

o Cash flow is carefully managed and cash balances are tightly controlled.

o Since Govemment funding is determined largely by the number of puplis and students on roll, the Academy
Trust works hard to recruit and retain pupils and students. It strives to maintain a reputation for strong education
performance, and to provide all pupils and students with high quality teaching and learning and great
opportunities. Quality assurance processes are rigorous and pupil and student progress is routinely monitored.
Where required, interventions are swift and effective in ensuring all pupils and students make progress and
achieve.

* Cost pressures — there is always a risk that costs will rise faster than core funding. Typically, the Govemment
has provided grants to help offset pay, pension and national insurance increases though these are never
guaranteed, and at present, the Academy Trust has cash in reserve. To mitigate this risk:

o Trustees and leaders maintain robust financial oversight.

o Financial plans, based on realistic assumptions, are prepared and monitored, and budget variances are
identified and acted upon as appropriate.

o The Academy Trust takes a curriculum-led approach to financial planning to ensure the funding it has available
is used efficiently, effectively and economically to provide the best curriculum for its pupils and students and
deliver its educational priorities.

o The Academy Trust manages its cash position robustly and maintains very effective systams of internal
financiat control.

o Trustees and leaders ensure spending decisions represent value for money.

Fundraising

The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Trustees.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

UK Lreenhouse gas emissions and energy use data tor 1Y September 2023 1 September 2024 10
thie peiod 1o 1% August 2024 31 Angust 2024

{aergy consumplicn used 10 caloulate emissions (kwh} RS R R0 4,010,433 kwh
L ry sansuniption breigk doven (KW {agHional}

Cias (el DI/ Bionass) 2,775,592 kwh 2,079,401 kwh
Clectricity 2,072,504 kWh 1,906,720 kWh
ransport tuel 27,557.25 kwWh | 24,312.00 kWh
S O[H2 T CISSIONG B et tonnes (00

a5 {and nil/biomass] consumption 506.70 379.57
Orwened /1 eased Tianspor < i huses 6.45 5.99

Totol seogne 1 513.15 385.56

Seope J Amissians inonetric tonnaes (O 2o

Purt hased slectricity 368.75

S opHe S8 esrassiones m snebne tonnes COLe

Business tavel in pinpioyes owned vehii les 6._2_1

Trtal conizsions inmetrn tomnes CO2e 759.77
intensity ratio

Lonnes {OUe per pupil , 0.16

Quantification and Reporting Methodeology:
* We have {ollowed the 2019 HM Government Environmentai Reporting Guidelines, We

have also used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the
2024 UK Government’s Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio Is total gross emissions In metric tonnes CO2e
per pupil, the recommended ratlc for the sectar.

Measures taken to improve energy efficlency
We have continued to roll out LED lights at Trust sites. City of Oerby Academy has had

high level lighting replaced with LED lights, and there ts an ongoing programme to replace
the remaining lights thils academic year.

We have also had a series of boilers replaced at Chellaston Academy, Castle View and
Queen Elizabeth’s Grammar School. These were all older model bollers that have been

replaced with much more energy efficient replacements.

The Academy Trust's energy consumption per pupil increased, mostly due o the fact the gas central heating
systems were on for longer because of cold weather. The major construction works at Chellaston Academy also
saw more energy consumed.
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Plans for future perlods

The Academy Trust's core purpose remains to provide the best possible educational outcomes for children and
young people, regardless of their starling point and for all children and young people to develop and thrive in a
supportive environment.

Through the actions of Question, Explore, Give and Succeed, the Academy Trust is driven to improve the life
chances of all children and young people and to provide high guality education and care to enable them to
develop the knowledge and skills they need to become successful and responsible citizens in modem Britain.

To achieve its purpose and vision, the Academy Trust will again focus on its five key goals and will continue to
work in collaboration with others to drive improvements across its schools. The Academy Trust's pricrities are to
drive forward consistent curriculum implementation in its schoals, ensure high quality teaching, fully implement
quality assurance, ensure all puplils and students attend school and are well prepared for examinations and can
successfully progress to the next stage of their lives, regardless of their starting point, and embed the wider
curriculum offer and extra-curricular provision.

The Academy Trust's emphasis will be building on the many strengths in its schools and addressing the areas
for development, with the support of external partners where needed. The Academy Trust will focus on providing
high quality teaching, leaming and leadership at all levels, including govemance, whilst ensuring well-being
remains at the heart of the provision. Cross school collaboration and networking wilt continue to flourish.

The curriculum is the most important element of provision, and the Academy Trust will work tirelessly to ensure
all children and young people are in school to benefit from teaching, learning, social, emotional, spiritual and
mental health and well-being in all settings. A remaining priority is to continue to have a strong focus on
improving attendance in all settings. External validation is important and improving schools to be Ofsted ‘good or
better’ will underline the achievements and improvements above.

Investing in the professional development of the workforce and planning for succession remain priorities,
particularly in the current educational climate with challenges in reciuitment and retention. We will continue to
suppont colleagues who wish to undertake National Professional qualifications. Whole Trust, cross- frust and in-
school professional leaming will alse be driven by Trust leadership teams.

There has been and wilt continue to be some investment in improving the condition of our school buildings over
the coming years. The Academy Trust continues to deliver on the capital spending programme cutfined in its
Estates Strategy. The improvements will be funded from a capital grant of circa £1m from the Government
known as the School Condition Allocation.

The Academy Trust's work with Derby City and Inclusion, and the network of organisations involved, will
continue. The Academy Trust will also continue to work with a range of Educational improvement Consultants to
provide external quality assurance where appropriate, The Academy Trust is committed to improving pupil and
student outcomes, not only in its schools but much wider.

The Academy Trust is seeking to grow and develop, particularly following a successful year of Qfsted outcomes
and improved educational outcomes in the Summer 2024 and with the event of the retirement of the CEO in
December 2024. The Academy Trust is exploring a merger with another local Trust, namely Djanogly Leaming
Trust. This process is based on the sound rationale of shared values, philosophy and beliefs in education. To
support this strategy, the CEO of Djanogly Learning Trust will be appointed as Interim CEQ for QEGSMAT and
will be in place from 1 January 2025. The Academy Trust's growth will be measured, and capacity driven, so
that the quality of its schoo! improvement and resource management work is not compromised. The Academy
Trust aims to be a centre for high quality continued professional leaming for staff, and to be consistent in
providing innovative and research-based leadership, leaming, teaching and wider curriculum opportunities for the
communities it serves. We aim to offer the best education, curriculum, opportunities, and facilities with the
resources available.
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Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

In the period under review, neither the Academy Trust nor its Trustees were acting as custodian Trustees, and
no funds were held an behalf of others, other than the post-16 bursary grants as detalled in note 33.

Disclosure of information to auditors

insofar as the Trustees are aware:

« There is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's auditor is unaware; and
« The Trusteas have taken all steps that they ought fo have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that informatlon.

Auditors

PKF Smith Cooper, Prospect House, 1 Prospect Place, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8HG have been re-appointed
as external auditors for the financial year 2024/2025 and BHP, 2 Rufland Park, Broomhall, Sheffield, S10 2PD
have been appointed as intemal auditors.

The Trustees' report, Incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustess, as the

company directors, on  \\p¥~ O Corloes 2C 3 ¢ and signed on its behalf by:
g ........... .uz; AMMM ......

Mrs S Hall Mrs A Martin

Chair of Trustees Trustes
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring QEGSMAT has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the DfE's Academy Trust Governance
Guide and competency framework for governors.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-lo-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
QEGSMAT and the Secrelary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intermnal control.

Goverpance

The information on govemance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met & times during the year.

Attendance during the year at these meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mrs S Hall, Chair 6
Mr H Tresidder, Vice Chair, and Chair of 6
Finance, Audit and Risk Commitiee

Mr K Wesley 4
Mr P Stanyer, Chair of Performance Committee 6
Mr S Smith 4
Mr T Collis 4
Mrs S Forsyth 5
Mrs A Martin, Chief Executive Officer and 6
Accounting Officer

Mrs L Key 6

<D OO D [ M.

All meetings were quorate. Trustees provided support and robust challenge to ensure improved cutcomes for all
pupils, and the efficient use of resources. Mr S Garrity, Mrs S Stone, Mrs A Wilton and Mrs R Linton attended as
Headteachers of Queen Elizabeth's, St John's, Castle View and Waterhouses respeclively to present the
school's strengths and progress towards achieving their key arganisational goals,

Mr S Hardy (Head of HR) attended to advise the board on HR matters.

Mr M Feldman (an independent reviewer) attended to observe the meeting as part of an external review of
governance at the request of the Board.

The Board considered high quality management from Executive Leaders at their mestings. This information
enabled the Board to maintain effective oversight of all aspects of the Academy Trust's performance, including
its financlal performance, and provided them with an understanding of the strengths and areas for impravement.
During the period under review, Trustees made regular visits to each schoal to experience first-hand the matters
reported and to talk to puplls, staff and Local Governors.
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Governance (continued)
During the period under review there were key changes to the composition of the Board.
Mr N Moore was appolnted as a trustee by the Members on the 21 August 2024,

The term of office of Mrs S Hali came to an end on the 23 March 2024, and she was re-appointed by the
Members for a further four years.

As aforamentioned, the Board of Trustees has appointed two sub-committees to ensure robust aversight of the
Academy Trust. The commiitees pravide rigorous scrutiny of the educational and financial perfformance of the
Academy Trust and Its schools.

The Academy Trust is diligent in its approach to managing potential conflicts of interest and always ensures
compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to related party transactions. An up-to-date register of
interests is maintained and published on the website. The register captures the relevant business and pecunlary
Interests of Members, Trustees, Local Governors and senlor employees, and material interest from close family
relationships. In addition to the register, Members, Trusiees, Local Govemnors and senior employees are
required to declare any conflicts of interest at the start of all meetings and withdraw from that part of the meeting
o ensure impartial decision making.

An external review of governance was commissioned and carried out on 25th September 2024 by an expert from
Optimus Education. The process involved interviews and discussions with key members of the Executive
Leadership Team, Members, Trustees and Local Governors; scrutiny of Trustee agendas, minutes, Terms of
Reference and the Scheme of Delegation, as well as an audit of the QEGSMAT website.

A report was drafted, communicated and actions were agreed. During the following few weeks an action plan
was produced and shared with the DfE, following the QEGSMAT DfE Strategic convarsation in February 2024,
Actions Included: recruitment of Trustees with a range of skills and experlise to add education and business
depth to the Board, following recent resignations; to continue to develop the role of a Trustee in providing
challenge and support to leaders; to develop the knowledge and curmrent educational expertise, of Trustees, in
responding to national change and to headline data, equally, at every school.

Normally an external review of governance would be commissioned every two/three years and the outcomes and
progress shared with the DfE. The next external review, will therefore, form part of the school improvement
cycle as QEGSMAT potentially merges. As a guide it is likely to be 2026-2027.

The Finance, Audit and Risk the commitiee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. The committee
met five times during the period, to keep the financlal performance of the Academy Trust under review.
Financlal sustainability and effective financial management were a focus, whilst ensuring the highest value for
money and the efficient use of resources to improve education.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustees and key management Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr H Tresidder, Chair 5 S
Mrs A Martin 5 5
Mr T Collis 5 5
Mr P Stanyer 5 5
Mr S Smith 4 5
Mrs S Hall 4 5
Mrs L Key 5 5
Mr J Harrison 5 5
Mr R Tuck 1 1
Mr S Hardy 3 3
Mrs V Bostock 1 1

All meetings were entirely quorate with the exception of the meeting on 17 June 2024, which was not quorate for
Page 29



QEGSMAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance {continued)
the first haif hour. No decisions were made by the committee until the meeting became quorate.

Associate leaders from the Academy Trust's central services team attended meetings to provide updates on
their areas of responsibility.

The Academy Trust's auditors were in attendance at the December 2023 meeting, where the annual audited

accounts for the period ending 31 August 2023 were presented for consideration and recommendation to the
Trust Board for approval.
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Governance {continued)

The Performance Commiittee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. This committee met three
times during the year to oversee the educational performance of the Academy Trust and its schools.

Aftendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustees and key management Mestings attended Out of a possible
Mr P Stanyer, Chair 3 3
Mrs S Halt 3
Mrs S Forsyth 2 3
Mr K Wesley 2 3
Mr H Tresidder 2 3
Mrs A Martin 3 3
Mrs L Key 1 3
Mrs V Hall 2 2
Mr D Hudson 3 3

Mrs $ Hall resigned as co-chair of the Performance Commitlee on 8 September 2023, with Mr P Stanyer
agreeing to become sole Chair.

The Headteacher of Springfield attended the meeting on 4 March 1o discuss the school's performance and
Academy Improvement Plan.
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Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during the academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has
delivered improved value for money during the year by;

Targeting its Resources Effectively

The Academy Trust took a curriculum-led approach to financial planning to ensure its available funding was used
efficiently, effectively, and economically to provide the best curriculum for its pupils and deliver its educational
priorities. Staffing levels were kept under review, workflows were streamlined, and the job roles of some staff
were sharpened to improve efficiency and effectiveness. The Pupil Premium, and funding received to support
those puplls with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND), was also targeted at delivering @ broad and
balanced curriculum,

There was a continuous drive to improve the quality of teaching and leaming through quality assurance,
coaching, mentoring, and {raining and development. The Academy Trust utilised the apprenticeship levy to
upskill employees and fund accredited training courses including national professional qualifications. Capital
investment was largely targeted at improving the condition of the Academy Trust's buildings, building
compliance, energy efficiency, health and safety issues and in ICT equipment.

Purchasing Reviews

The Academy Trust has stringent purchasing procedures in place, and these were consistently implemented
throughout the year. The approved supplier list was kept under review and regular market tests (and tenders
where appropriate) were conducted to ensure the highest value for money from suppliers, QEGSMAT continued
to use its multi academy trust status to its advantage by combining the commercial requirements of its schools
inte trust wide contracts to benefit from economies of scale, where possible.

During the period under review, a compelitive tender process was carried out for a single catering provider to
work across the Academy Trust. To support with the process an external facilities management consultancy,
Invictus Partnership, was engaged. A number of tenders were received and evaluated, resulting in the
appointment of ABM Catering for a period of five years from August 2024,

Works continued during the period to address the Trust's short, medium and long-term building condition
priorities that had been identified through building condition surveys.

The Academy Trust speni considerable sums an ICT equipment during the year and chose its suppliers largely
through the Everything ICT Framework, a fully compliant public sector procurement framework approved by the
DfE. The Academy Trust's pupils and staff benefitted from some significant investment in desktop computers,
Chromebooks, laptops, server replacements, Wi-Fi cabling and interactive whiteboards to support teaching and
learning.

The Academy Trust also made use of the Crown Commercial Service and the Govemment's ‘Get Help Buying

for Schools' service where possible, although in some cases, the Academy Trust was successful in negotiating
better deals independently, particularly in retation to agency staff.
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Revlew of value for money (continued)

Reviewing Financial Controls

The Academy Trust continued to operate a rigorous and robust internal financial control framework, tested by
independent auditors three times per annum. Its financial operations and Internal financial control framework
were kept under review to ensure ils cash and other assets were kept safe and secure.

Robust governance, and oversight and scrutiny of the Academy Trust's finances was a focus. Trustees receive
and review comprehensive reports on the Academy Trust's financial performance, and the Board of Trustees
remain responsible for all significant financial decisions.

The purpose of the system of Internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk o a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effecliveness. The system of internat control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and address the risks to the achievement of the Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be reafised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively, and economically. During the period under review, and up to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements, the Academy Trust's system of intemnal financial control remained strong.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of trusteas has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed, together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The boeard

of trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing

the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period from 1 September 2023 to 31 August
2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financlal statements. This process is regularly
reviewed by the board of trustees,

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of intemal control Is based on a framework of regufar management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability,
In particular, it includes:

» Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

* Regular reviews by the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee of reports which analyse budget variances and of
major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

+ Setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

+ Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

» Delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

* Identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Barber, Harrison and Platt Limited

The Academy Trust chose BHP to deliver its internal scrutiny function due to them being independent, objective,
suitably qualified and experienced. A programme of audit testing is agreed with the Finance, Audit and Risk
Committee prior to the start of the period, and reports, with recommendaticns where appropriate, were provided,

The reviewer’s role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on
the Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

» Tasting of payroll systems;

* Testing of purchasing systems;

* Testing of control account/bank reconciliations;

* Testing of controls around other areas such as fixed assets, expense claims, credit card transactions,
petty cash income, related party transactions and other compliance matters.,
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On a semi-annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance, Audit and Risk
committee on the operation of the systems of contro! and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial
responsibilities. On an annual basis the reviewer prepares a summary raport to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
YOar on year progress.

The Academy Trust's internal auditor has delivered its schedule of work for the 2023/2024 academic year as
planned and has raised no material issues as a rasult of its work.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

* The work of the internai auditors;

+ The financial management and governance self-assessment process;

» The work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internat control framework;

+ The work of the external auditors; and

« Corespondence from the ESFA.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance, Audit and Risk committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of

Trustees is of the opinion that the Academy Trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk
management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on \\o‘h Qo etvot/ JCAQ and signed on
their behalf by:

Mrs S Hall MrsAMartIn
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of QEGSMAT, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of
Trustees and the ESFA of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all
funding, including for estates safety and management received by the Academy Trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration, | have had due regard o the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
responsibifitias for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material imegular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

| confirm that no instances of material iregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance hava been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

AMaATn

Mrs A Martin
Accounting Officer

Date: \\a-\&-)-q'
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a frue and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
induding its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial stalements, the Trustees are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

] prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company appiies
financial and other conirols, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of geod financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of  Trustees on
Wt Qe o aCa ¢ and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs S Hall
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
QEGSMAT

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of QEGSMAT (the 'academy trust’) for the year ended 31 August 2024
which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the
related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom
Generaliy Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting
Standard appficable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skilis Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financial statements:

) give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of rescurces, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding

Agency.
Baslis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibliities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our cther ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

Woe draw attention to note 1.2 in the financial statements, which indicates that there are proposed plans to merge
with another Academy Trust. As set out in nole 1.2 the potential consequences of the proposed merger indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's abillity to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respact of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Trustees'
assessment of the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting included a
review of the trust's financial position, forecasts and relevant subsequent events.

Our responslbilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concem are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
QEGSMAT (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditars’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicilly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance concfusion therean. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinlon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibllities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic altemnative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
QEGSMAT (CONTINUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issues an Auditors' report that includes our
oplnion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, fo detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
Including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

Based on our understanding of the academy trust and industry, key laws and regulations that we identified
included the Companies Act, Charities SORP and guidance included within the Academy Trust Handbook and
Acadarmies Accounts Direction.

We identified that the principal risk of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations related to:

. management bias in respect of accounting estimates and judgements made;
. management override of control;

. posting of unusual journals or transactions;

. non-compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook and Academies Accounts Direction.

We focussed on those areas that could give rise to a material misstatement in the Academy Trust financial
statements. Our procedures included, but were not limited to:

e enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims, including instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

. reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance where available;

. reviewing legal expenditure in the vear to identify instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations
and fraud;

. reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation fo assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

. performing audit work over the risk of management override of contrals, including testing of journal entries

and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions
outside the normal course of businass and reviawing accounting estimates for bias. In particular, a review
of assumptions used in the valuation of defined benefit pension liabilities;

. a separate limited scope regularity review has been undertaken in respect of compliance with the
Academy Trust Handbook and out report in respect of this is contained within these financial statements.

it is the primary responsibllity of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure
that the entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the
prevention and detection of fraud.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those teading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of Instances of non-compliance.
The risk Is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsiblilittes. This description forms part of our
Auditors' report,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
QEGSMAT (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those malters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent pemitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and Its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ﬂ(? Sem¥ (DO\W' Pad X L\m\ld\

James Delve (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

PKF Smith Cooper Audit Limited
Statutory Auditors

Prospect House

1 Prospect Place

Millennium Way

Derby

DE24 8HG

Date: \k Oetomn/ 024
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO QEGSMAT
AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement |etter dated & September 2024 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by QEGSMAT during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Pariament and the financial transactions conform fo the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solely to QEGSMAT and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to QEGSMAT and ESFA those matters we are required to
state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than QEGSMAT and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the concluslon we
have formed.

Respective responsibllities of QEGSMAT's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of QEGSMAT's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 29 July 2011 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authaorities which govern them.

Our responsibllities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in camrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement fetter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's Income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

- Ptanned our assurance procedures including identifying key risks;

- Carried out a program of substantive testing, including review of the program of work and findings In
relation 1o internal scrutiny;

- Undertook controls testing where considered appropriate;

- Concluded on the procedures undertaken.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO QEGSMAT
AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY {CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govem them.

Pt Gal Coa‘m hodd  (mded

Reporting Accountant
PKF Smith Cooper Audit Limited

Statutory Auditors
Prospect House
1 Prospect Place
Millennium Way

Derby
DE24 8HG

Date: V3 Ogamonsr 204
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 - 28 3,761 3,789 3,902
Other trading activities 5 297 - - 297 260
Investments 6 111 - - 11 35
Charitable activities - 33,596 - 33,596 31,757
Total Income 408 33,624 3,761 37,793 35,954
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities :
Academy Trust
Educational Operations 8 248 33,914 2,284 36,446 34,413
Total expenditure 248 33,914 2,284 36,446 34,413
Net
incomel/(expenditure) 160 (290) 1,477 1,347 1,541
Transfers between
funds 21 - 329 {329) - -
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses) 160 39 1,148 1,347 1,541
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 29 - 1,280 - 1,280 1,853
Pension surplus not
recognised 29 - {142) - (142) {225)
Net movement in
funds 160 1177 1,148 2,485 3,169
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Reconcillation of
funds:
Total funds braught
forward 21 442 1,122 97,648 99,212 96,043
Net movement in funds 21 160 1,177 1,148 2,485 3,169
Total funds carried
101,697 99,212

forward 602

2,299 98,796

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 48 to 80 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks
Debtars
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors; amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assels

Total assets less current liabilities

Craditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme tiability

Total net assets

Note

16

17
18

19

20

29

4
839
7,914

8,857

{3,561)
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2024
£000

97,060

97,060

5,296

102,356

(2)

102,354

(657)

101,697

4
2,187
7.218

9,409

(3,.322)

2023
£000

95,145

95,145

6,087

101,232

)

101,225

(2,013)
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QEGSMAT

(A company limited by guarantea)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07698914

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023

Note £000 £000
Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds;
Fixed asset funds 21 98,796 97,648
Restricted income funds 21 2,956 3,135
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 21 101,752 100,783
Pension reserve 21 {657) (2,013)
Total restricted funds 21 101,095 98,770
Unrestricted income funds 21 602 442
Total funds 101,697 69,212

The financial statements on pages 43 to 80 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on
o Qoo ~oor ACHA and are signed on their behalf, by:

Mrs S Hall Mrs A Martin
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

The notes on pages 48 to 80 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activitles

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 48 to 80 form part of these financial statements
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23
25

24

26, 27

2024 2023

£000 £000

1,030 253

(329) 150

(5) (5)

696 398

7,218 6,820

7,914 7,218
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)}, the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

QEGSMAT meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

The financial statements are prepared in Sterling which is the functional currency of the Academy
Trust and rounded to the nearest £'000.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a pariod of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources o continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future,

However, as noted in the Trustees report, subsequent to the year end an application has been made
to the Department for Education for QEGSMAT and Djanogly Learning Trust (DLT) to merge. This
will be considered by the East Midlands Advisory Committee in due course, and subject to their
approval, the two Trusts will aim to merge on 1st September 2025.

At the date of signing, there has been no decision regarding which Trust will fransfer to the other,
therefore it is possible that the assels and liabilities of QEGSMAT may transfer to DLT. In this event,
QEGSMAT would cease to continue in operational existence and as such Trustees have determined
there Is a material uncertainty with regards to going concem. It has not been considered necessary to
make any adjustments to the value of assets or liabilities as a result of this assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policles (continued)

1.3

14

Income

All incoming resources are recegnised when the Academy Trust has entittement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financlal activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the pericd Is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meseting any performance-
relatod conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entittement occurs befcre income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and racognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitllement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditicns)
where the receipt Is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income

Other income, Including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive cbligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured rellably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute 1o more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities

Thase are casis incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixad assets and are camied at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impalment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
aclivities. Where langible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets olher than freehold land and assets under

construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-ine basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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1. Accounting policles (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold land and buildings - Qver the useful aconomic life

Leasehold property - Over the useful economic life or the remaining
length of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Improvement to freehold and - 10% Straight Line

leasehold property

Fumiture and equipment - 20% Straight Line

Plant and equipment - 10% Straight Line

Computer equipment - 33% Straight Line

Motor vehicles - 25% Straight Line

Asset under construction - No depreciation charge until the project is

completed

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost, Depreciation on these assets is not charged
unlil they are brought into use and rectassified to freehold, leasehold land and buildings or
improvements to properties depending on the class of asset.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is camied out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the camrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Certain land occupied and used by Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School belongs to the Old Trust, and
as such is not included on the balance sheet of the Academy Trust. No charge is made in the
Statement of Financial Activities to reflect the use of this land and it has an infinite life, therefore
would not be depraciated. The Old Trust have confirmed that the land will be available for the use of
the school for as long as required.

Additional land accupied by Waterhouses CE Primary Academy and St John's CofE Primasy are
under a church setilement agreement. Under these agreements the land and buildings are not
included on the balance sheet of the Academy Trust. No charge is made in the Statement of
Financial Activities to reflect the use of this land as the rent is al a peppearcorn rate.

Stocks

Unsold uniforms are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving stocks.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settisment amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account,

The Academy Trust also wtilises deposit accounts for surplus funds, these vary from 3 to 12 months
fixed term,
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1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.10 Liabilittes and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a resuilt of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

1.11 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - rade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 19 and 20. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed fo be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.12 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight-
line basis over the lease term,
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employses of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme {"TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and futlure pensionabie payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period te which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at sach Balance sheet date. Tha amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme Introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, caleulated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual retum on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately In other recognised gains and losses.

As a result of the assumptions applied by the actuary, the actuarial valuation at the year end has
resulted in a surplus position for one of the schemes within the Trust. The recognition of a sumplus
under FRS102 should only be made to the extent that an employer can expect to secure economic
benefit from i, either by paving a reduced rate of contributions or taking a refund. It is not anticlpated
that the next actuarial vafuation will result in a reduction to contributions and the Trust has no option
to take a refund. The surpluses for the affected schemes have therefore been removed and are
shown as a breakeven position at the year-end. The derecognition adjustment is shown as other
racoghised gainsflosses. No offsetting has been applied against the other scheme'’s LGPS liability
present at the year end.

1.14 Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA.
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1.

Accounting policles {continued)

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capilal purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of jJudgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assats and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

As a result of the current market conditions factored into the assumptions applied by the LGPS scheme
actuary, the actuarial valuation at the year-end has resulted in a surplus position for one of the schemes
within the Trust. The reccgnition of a surplus under FRS102 should only be made to the extent that an
employer can expect to secure economic benefit from it, either by paying a reduced rate of contributions
or taking a refund. Management have assessed both considerations and concluded the following:

+ Based on historic practices and updates on future expectations from the administering authofity,
management do not anticipate that the next actuarial valuation will resuit in a reduction to contributions
due to current market conditions.

* The availability of any potential cash refund once all liabilities have been paid is based on severat
unpredictable future outcomes set out in the scheme rules that cannot be reasonably assumed at this
stage. As a result, management consider there to be a very low possibility of a cash refund.

From the above conclusion, the surplus batance has therefore been restricted to a value of “nil" at the
year-end. The derecognition adjustment is shown as other recognised gains/losses in the Statement of
Financial Activities. No offsetting has been applied against the other scheme's LGPS liability present at
the year-end.,
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3. Income from donations and capital grants

Donations
Capital Grants
School condition funding

Total 2024

Total 2023

Resfricted

Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
28 - 28 328
- 2,627 2,627 2433
- 1,134 1,134 1,141
28 3,761 3,789 3,902

34 3,868 3,902
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4, Funding for Academy Trust’s Educational Operations

Educational operations

DIE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium
Teachers' pay grant
Rates reclaim
PE sporis grant
UIFSM
Teachers' pension grant
Supplementary grant
Mainstream school additional funding
Other

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Other income from the Academy Trust's educational
operations

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other COVID funding

Total 2024

Total 2023
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Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2024 2024 2023

£000 £000 £000

28,073 28,073 26,665

1,641 1,641 1,519

455 455 1

116 116 140

69 69 69

56 56 69

382 382 110

5 5 1,040

883 883 368

4 4 76

31,684 31,684 30,057

1,213 1,213 1,098

670 670 575

28 29 27

33,596 33,596 31,757
31,757 31,757
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5. Other Trading Actlvities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
General sales 183 183 162
Hire of facilities 114 114 98
Total 2024 297 297 260
Total 2023 260 260
6. Investment income
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
Investment received on short term deposits i1 i 35
Total 2024 11 114 35
Total 2023 35 35
7. Expenditure
Staff Costs Premisas Other Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Academy’s educational
operations:
Direct costs 20,543 2,284 1,735 24,562 23,395
Support costs 6,261 2,811 2,812 11,884 11,019
Total 2024 26,804 5,095 4,547 36,446 34,414

Total 2023 24,927 5,065 4,422 34,414
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Analysils of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund type

Educational operations

Total 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational Activities

Total 2623

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Depreciation
Educational supplies
Examination fees
Staff development
Property impalrment
Other direct costs
Other project costs
Recruitment

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
248 36,198 36,446 34,413
226 34,187 34,413
Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
24,562 11,884 36,446 34,414
23,395 11,019 34,414
Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£000 £000
19,537 17,818
2,284 2,060
441 517
414 512
87 127
- 543
1,106 1,205
600 509
23 104
24,562 23,395
f——————
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9. Analysis of axpenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Repairs and maintenance
Cleaning

Rates

Heat and light
Catering

Legal and professional
Security

Insurance

Transport

Other support costs
Technology
Governance costs

10. Analysis of speclfic expenses

There were no individual transactions exceeding £5,000 within the above categories.

11.  Net incomel/{expenditure)

Net income/({expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Impairment of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

Statutory external audit
Other services pald to external auditor
Governance internal audit costs
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Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£000 £000
6,260 6,705
782 570
738 546
279 308
985 986
748 588
301 269
27 57
129 i18
142 140
831 691
629 609
33 32
11,884 11,019
2024 2023
£000 £000
68 70
2,284 2,060
- 543
23 23
2 2
8 7
=
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12, Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 19,327 17,810
Sacial security costs 2,035 1,842
Pension costs 4,436 4,271
25,798 23,923

Agency staff costs 1,006 1,004

26,804 24,927

b, Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers 283 292
Administration and Support 284 289
Management 46 40

613 621
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12.  Staff (continued)

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employeas whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2024 2023
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 15 7
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 5 5
In the band £80,001 - £80,000 1 2
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2 -
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 1 1
in the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1
In the band £120,001 - £130,000 1 -
In the band £130,001 - £140,000 - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150,000 1 -
The above employees participated in either the TPS or LGPS. During the year ended 31 August 2024,
pension contributions for these staff members amounted to £475,868 (2023; £274,207).

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management parsonnel benefits

{including employer pensicn contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £4,164,694 (2023 - £ 3,560,957}
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13. Central services
The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Financial Services
Education Improvement
Human Resources

iT

Assels and Estates

The Academy Trust charges for these services an the following basis:
The charge is based on a flat percentage, charged at 5% of GAG for all academies,

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000
Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School 381 373
Springfield Junior School 58 58
Waterhouses CE Primary School 29 27
City of Derby Academy 350 325
Castleview Primary School kY 33
Chellaston Academy 509 476
St John's CofE Primary School M 40
Total 1,405 1,332

14, Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been pald remuneration or has recsived other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
sarvices they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
amployment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000

Mrs A Martin, Executive Headteacher / Chief Remuneration 145 -150 130- 135
Executive and Accounting Officer

Pension contributions paid 10-15 10-15

During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to 1 Trustees (2023 - 1) in respect of defined benefit
pension schemes.

During the year ended 31 August 2024, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2023 - £NIL).
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15. Trustees’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Acaderny Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternalive to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme mambership.

16, Tangible fixed assets

Freehold

land and Leasehold Freehold Leasehold

buildings property Improvements improvements

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2023 75,577 24,692 1,250 1,200
Additions - - 667 609
Disposals - - - {46)
Transfers between classes - - 3,387 120
At 31 August 2024 75,577 24,692 5,304 1,883
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 4,450 4,864 191 258
Charge for the year 1,087 465 216 133
On disposals - - - (46)
At 31 August 2024 5,547 5,329 407 345
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 70,030 19,363 4,897 1,538

At 31 August 2023 71,127 19,628 1,058 942
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Plant and
equipment
Assets Furniture and
under and computer
construction equipment equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,307 225 1,231 105,482
2,468 115 342 4,201
- - (304) (350)
(3.507) - - -
268 340 1,269 109,333
- 54 520 10,337
- 54 318 2,283
- - {302) (348)
- 108 536 12,272
268 232 733 97,061

1,307 171 711 95,145
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16.

17,

18,

Tangible fixed assets (continued)
The assets under construction represant ongoing capital projects that were incomplete at the yearend.
Land

Certain land occupled and used by Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School belongs to the Old Trust, and as
such is not includad on the balance sheet of the Academy Trust. No charge is made in the Statement of
Financial Activities to reflect the use of this land and it has an Infinite life, therefore would not be
depreciated. The Old Trust have confirmed that the land will be available for the use of the school for as
long as required.

Additional land occupied by Waterhouses CE Primary Academy and St John's CofE Primary are under a
church settlement agreement. Under these agreements the land and bulldings are not included on the
balance sheet of the Academy Trust. No charge is made in the Statement of Financial Activities to reflect
the use of this land as the rent is at a peppercom rate.

included in the net book value of property displayed above are the following amounts ascribable to land:

2024 2023
£000 £600
Freehold land 24,540 24,540
Long-term leasehold land 4,773 4,976

29,313 29,616

Stocks
2024 2023
£000 £000
Uniforms 4 4
=== ————
Debtors
2024 2023
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade deblors 7 450
Other debtors 104 521
Prepayments and accrued income 828 1,216

239 2,187

An impairment against trade debtors of £8,872 has been racognised during the year (2023: £240).
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19.

20,

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2024 2023
£000 £000
Other loans 5 5
Trade creditors 1,770 1,534
Other taxation and social security 435 429
Other creditors 543 462
Accruals and deferred income _ 808 892
3,561 3,322
2024 2023
£000 £000
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 356 544
Resources deferred during the year 38 155
Amounts released from previous periods {240) (343)
154 356

Al the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds of £36,167 in relation to rates
adjustments, £49,673 in relation to school led fuition funding, and £68,462 made up of immaterial
deferrals.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2024 2023
£000 £000
Other loans 2 7
Included within the above are amounts falling due as follows:
2024 2023
£000 £000
Between one and two years
Other loans 2 &
Between two and five years

Qther loans - 2

The loan is unsecured and was entered into before conversion to an Academy and is an interest free loan
entered into with Salix Finance Lid as part of the energy loans programme. Repaymenis are made twice
a year over an 8 year pariod.
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21, Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2023 income Expanditure infout {Losses) 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds -
all funds 442 408 (248) - - 602
Rastricted
genaral funds
Restricted Funds
- other 3,135 479 {987) 329 - 2,956
GAG - 28,073 {28,073) : . . -
Pupil premium - 1,641 (1,641) - - -
Teachers pay
grant - 455 {458) . - -
Rates raclaim - 116 {116) - - -
PE sports grant - 69 (69) - - -
UNIFSM - 56 (586) - - -
Teachers
pension grant - 382 {382) - - -
Other ESFA - 893 (893) - - -
Local authority
grants - 1,213 {1,213) - - .
Other COVID
funding - 29 {29) - - -
Pension reserve (2,013) 218 . - 1,138 (657)
1,122 33,624 {33,914) 329 1,138 2,299
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed
asset funds -
other 95,007 . (2,284) 4,248 - 97,061
5106 Capital
Grant - 2,399 - (2,399) - -
DfE Group
Capital Grants 2,551 1,362 - {2,178) - 1,735
97,648 3,761 {2,284) (328) - 98,796
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21. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 - £000

Total Restricted
funds 98,770 37,385 (36,198) - 1,138 101,095
Total funds 99,212 37,793 (36,446) . 1,138 101,697

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objectives of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
the Department for Education where the asset required or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the
Depariment of Education and only be used for the purpose that the grants were intended. The main grant
received within these funds is the GAG.

The transfer from resticted fixed asset funds to restricted funds represent the Academy Trust's
contibution from GAG and other restricted reserves to capital projects.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG if could carry forward at 31 August 2024,
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21.

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds -
all funds 483 295 (226) (110) - 442
Restricted
general funds
Restricted Funds
- other 2,998 609 {168) (302) - 3,135
GAG 26,665 {26,665) - - -
Pupil premium 1,519 {1,519) - - -
Teachers pay
grant 1 (1) - o .
Rates reclaim 140 {140) - - -
PE sports grant - 69 {69) - - .
UNIFSM - 69 (69) - o o
Teachers
pension grant - 110 {110} - - -
Supplementary
grant = 1,040 {1,040) - o .
Mainstream
school additional
funding - 368 (368) - - -
Other ESFA - 76 (76) - - -
Local authority
grants - 1,098 (1.098) - - -
Other COVID
funding - 27 (27) - - -
Pension reserve (3,406) - {235) - 1,628 (2,013)
(410) 31,791 (31,585) (302) 1,628 1,122
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed
asset funds -
other 93,939 - (2,602) 3,760 - 95,097
$106 Capital
Grant 527 1,856 - (2,483) - -
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21.

Statement of funds (continued)

DfE Group
Capital Grants

CIF Projects

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,322 1,912 - (683) - 2,851

182 - - (182) - -
95,970 3,868 {2,602) 412 - 97,648
95,560 35,659 {34,187) 110 1,628 98,770
96,043 1,628 99,212

35,054 (34,413) -
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21. Statement of funds {continued}
Total funds analysis by Academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

2024 2023
£000 £000
QEGSMAT 3,558 3,577
Restricted fixed asset fund 98,796 97,648
Pension reserve (657) (2,013)
Total 101,697 99,212
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational  excluding Total Tolal
staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Waterhouses
CE Primary
Academy 409 81 51 212 753 706
Springfield
Junior School 1,133 154 a7 340 1,714 1,631
Queen
Elizabeth's
Grammar
School 6,056 551 514 1,641 8,732 8,662
QEGSMAT 939 294 98 545 1,876 1,381
City of Derby
Academy 615 117 91 222 1,045 1,089
Castle View
Primary School 5,198 439 607 1,563 7,807 7,383
Chellaston
Academy 7,978 656 648 1,823 11,105 10,375
St John's CofE
Primary School 775 75 62 218 1,130 1,126
6,534 34,162 32,353

Academy Trust 23,103 2,367 2,158
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22

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 97,060 97,060

Current assets 602 6,519 1,736 8,857

Creditors due within one year - (3,561) = (3,561)

Creditors due in more than one year - {2) - {2)

Pension scheme liability - (657) - {657)

Total 602 2,299 98,796 101,697
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior perlod

Restricted

Unrestricled  Restricted  fixed assel Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 95,145 95,145

Current assets 442 6,464 2,503 9,409

Creditors due within one year - {3,322) - {3,322)

Creditors due in more than one year - {7) - {7)

Pension scheme liability - (2,013 - {2,013)

442 1,122 97,648 99,212

Total
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23. Reconclliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the period (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation charges

Capital grants from DFfE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pansion scheme finance cost
Decreasef{increase} in debtors

Increase in creditors

Property impalment

Net cash provided by operating activities

24. Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

25, Cash flows from investing activities

Interast receivable

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DIE

Capital funding received from sponsors and others

Net cash (used in)/provided by Investing activities

Page 73

2024 2023
£000 £000
1,347 1,541
2,284 2,060
(3,761) (3,811)
(411) (35)
(304) 88
86 147
1,249 (902)
240 622

c 543
1,030 253
2024 2023
£000 £000
{5) {5)
2024 2023
£000 £000
111 35
(4,201) (3,753)
2,399 2,872
1,362 996
(329) 150
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26. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 5414 4,790
Short term deposit accounts 2,500 2,428
Total cash and cash equivalents 7.914 7,218

27. Analyslis of changes in net debt

At1
September At 31
2023 Cash flows August 2024
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 7.218 696 7,914
Debt due within 1 year (5) - {5)
Debt due after 1 year {7} 5 (2}
7,206 701 7,907
28. Capital commitments

2024 2023
£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 308 348

29. Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension
Scheme {LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Derbyshire County Council and Staffordshire
County Council, Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £542,857 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £461,554)
and are included within creditors.
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29.

Penslon commitments (continued)
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemned by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership Is automatic for full-lime teachers in
academies. All teachess have the opticn to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retiremant and cother pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament,

Valuation of the Teachers' Penslon Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations ard Employer Cost Cap} Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the leve! of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried ouf as at 31 March
2020, The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The
key elements of the valuation outcome are:

. Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of penslonable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

. Total scheme ltabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 miliion.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £3,487,410 (2023 - £2,995,779).

A copy of the valuation report and supporling documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(hitps:/iwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04fteachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust is unable to identify Hs share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out
above the infarmation available on the scheme.
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29,

Pension commitments {continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,467,000 (2023
- £1,295,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,172,000 (2023 - £1,037,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £295,000 (2023 - £258,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.6
per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

Partiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, fo a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilittes would be met by the
Depariment for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK.

As at 31 August 2024, the actuariat valuation for the Trust includes a surplus tofalling £367,000. This
surplus has not been recognised within the financial statements.

As a result of the current market conditions factored into the assumptions applied by the LGPS scheme
actuary, the actuarial valuation at the year-end has resulted in a surplus position for one of the schemes
within the Trust. The recognition of a surplus under FRS102 should only be made to the extent that an
employer can expect to secure economic benefit from it, either by paying a reduced rate of contributions
or taking a refund. Management have assessed both considerations and concluded the following:

» Based on historic practices and updates on future expectations from the administering authority,
management do not anticipate that the next actuarial valuation will result in a reduction to contributions
due to current market conditions.

» The availability of any potential cash refund once all liabilities have been paid is based on several
unpredictable future outcomes set out in the scheme rules that cannot be reasonably assumed at this
stage. As a result, management consider there to be a very low possibility of a cash refund.

From the above conclusion, the surplus balance has therefore been restricted to a value of “nil" at the
year-end. The derecognition adjustment is shown as other recognised gains/losses in the Statement of
Financial Activities. No offsetting has been applied against the other scheme's LGPS liability present at
the year-end.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.15 - 3.65 3.45-4
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation 2.65 295-3
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5 5.2
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29,

Pension commitments (continued)

The current moriality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring foday

Males Derbyshire & Staffordshire
Females Derbyshire & Staffordshire
Retiring in 20 years

Males Derbyshire & Staffordshire
Females Derbyshire & Staffordshire

Sensitivity analysis

Derbyshire pension fund:

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption 1 year increase
Mortality assumption 1 year decrease
Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%

Pensicn increase CP rate +0.1%
Pension increase CPl rate -0.1%

Staffordshire pension fundg:

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption 1 year increase
Mortality assumption 1 year decrease
Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%

Pension increase CPI rate +0.1%
Pension increase CPl rate -0.1%
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2024 2023
Years Years
2088&207 20864207
2388244 2388244
2158216 216&21.7
2538258 253&25.6
2024 2023

£000 £000

434 405

{434) {405}

(752) (690)

752 890

{16) {44)

16 44

(426) {368)

426 368
e e r——
2024 2023

£000 £000

H 27

(31) (27)

(45) {(40)

45 40

2) (4)

2 4

(30) (23)

30 23
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29. Penslon commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash

Total market value of assets

The actual retum on scheme assets was £2,287,000 (2023 - £782,000).

At 31 At 31 August

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financlal activities

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service costs
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial gains
Benefits paid

At 31 August
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August 2024 2023
£000 £000
12,344 10,866
4,844 3,578
1,350 1,297
749 477
19,287 16,218
2024 2023
£000 £000
(868) (1,125

- 1

885 645
(971) (792)
(954) (1.271)

- ——

2024 2023
£000 £000
18,231 18,078
868 1,125
a7 792
295 258
{(141) {1,790)
{280) {232)
19,944 18,231
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29, Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust’s share of scheme assets were as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000
At 1 September 16,218 14,671
Interest income 885 645
Actuarial gains 1,138 63
Employer contributions 1,172 1,038
Employee contributions 295 258
Benefits paid {280) {232}
Derecognition of LGPS surplus {142} {225}

At 31 August 19,287 16,218

30. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023
£000 £000
Not later than 1 year 53 46
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years " 34

64 8o

31. Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £NIL for the debis and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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32,

33.

Related party transactions

Apart from certain trustees' remuneration and expenses disclosed in note 14, the following related party
transactions took place during the year.

During the year costs totalling £1,637 {2023: £935) were incurred from Lichfield Diocese, whose member,
Reverent Alan Beahan, is a governor at Waterhouses. There were no balances outstanding at the
balance sheet date (2023: £NIL).

During the year costs totalling £Nil (2023: £550) were incured from Abacus Education Consultants
Limited, whose employee, Louise Davies, is a governor at Queen Elizabeth Grammar School. There were
no balances outstanding at the balance sheet date (2023: £NIL}).

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the compaosition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from focal public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related parly transactions.

Agency arrangements
The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In accounting period

ending 31 August 2024 the academy trust received £42,473 (2023: £41,376) and distributed £31,539,
£30,311 was written forward from the previous year, leaving £41,245 being written forward.
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